~%F

The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Denton held a Regular Scheduled Meeting
on Monday, October 6, 2025 at 6:00pm at Town Hall.

The following members were in attendance: Mayor Larry Ward

Commissioners: Anne Carter Bean, Scott Morris, Hayden Hicks, Barbara Hogan

Town Attorney, Misti Whitman, Town Manager, Ange! Jenkins, Town Clerk, Paula Hedrick
Absent: Mayor ProTem Deanna Grubb

1.

2.

Caill to Order

Mayor Ward called the meeting to order at 6:00pm
Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Ward led the Pledge of Allegiance

. Adoption of Agenda

Commissioner Bean stated we need to add 9a Call for Public Hearing of Alleyway
Closure.

-Commissioner Morris made a motion to approve 9a Call for Public Hearing of
Alleyway Closure.

-Commissioner Hogan seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)
Approval of September 2, 2025 Minutes

-Commissioner Morris made a motion to approve September 2, 2025 minutes.
-Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)

. Public Comment: Citizens may speak on items not listed on the printed agenda.

Please state your name and address and observe the three-minute time limit.
No one present to speak

Public Hearing for Rezoning Request 20250021 R.T. Shuler Company: Property
Location: Varner Street - Davidson County Parcel Number 0705200410005A-
From Highway Business to R8.

Ms. Jenkins stated she received a request from the applicant R.T. Shuler Company to
withdraw their rezoning request at this time. Ms. Jenkins stated that if they withdraw,
the process will start over and will go back before the Planning and Zoning Board.

Petition for Voluntary Annexation for 452 & 454 North Jones Street — Sam and
Ann Hale

Ms. Jenkins stated this is the property that we rezoned from Light Industrial to R8 at
the August 4, 2025 Board meeting. The Davidson County GIS map does show the
division of the property. The property owner has requested Voluntary Annexation for
both parcels, 452 & 454 North Jones Street.

Ms. Whitman asked if the petition for Annexation has been reviewed to make sure it is
sufficient in the request for annexation.

Ms. Jenkins stated that the information has been reviewed and there are no issues.
-Commissioner Morris made a motion to Call for Public Hearing of Voluntary
Annexation at 452 & 454 North Jones Street at the first meeting in November 2025.
-Commissioner Hogan seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)

Review Professional Service Contract Agreement with GFT, Inc. (Formerly
TranSystems Corporation) and review Paving Schedule — Chris Corriher




Chris Corriher with GFT, Inc. formally TranSytems, spoke in reference to a General
Service coniract with GFT, Inc and the Town of Denton to provide engineering
services, provide a scope of work and fees associated with work needed in various
areas. (pavement inspection, writing the contract, engineering services)

Mr. Corriher stated that for the current paving project, the Town can do an informal bid
process without having to request written bids for approval.
-Ms. Jenkins stated we can do this if the project is less than $300,000.

Mr. Corriher stated the AST Contract #DI00356 would be completed next summer at
the estimated project cost of $82,665 which will include inspection. The only way this
would change is if the price from NCDOT were to change. This will include 15 street

locations documented on the contract. (documentation attached for reference)

Mr. Corriher stated he and Ms. Jenkins are looking at Railroad Street, approximately
two blocks in Forrest Park and 250 feet to 300 feet leading into Greenbriar
development at the first drive off Salisbury Street and another 500 feet stretch at the
top of the hill. He had originally reached out to the NCDOT contractor for this area to
have it added to their current projects. However, the bids were closed out and was not
able to add the work. Paving will take place in the spring.

Mr. Corriher advised that J.T. Russell and Sharpe Brothers are both interested in
bidding on the paving project.

Commissioner Morris asked if the attorney has reviewed the contract with GFT, Inc.
Ms. Whitman confirmed that she has looked over the contract.

-Commissioner Bean made a motion to approve the General Service Contract with
GFT, Inc for engineering service associated with street paving.

-Commissioner Hogan seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)

. Consideration and Approval TRIP Sponsor Agreement 2025 — Friends of Denton
Parks and Recreation — W. Johnson Park Project

Ms. Jenkins stated the attached Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement was adopted by the
Tourism Recreation Investment Partnership (TRIP) Board. This will allow the TRIP
Board to open a bank account so that the funds from any fundraising can be
deposited and tracked for the W. Johnson Park project and future projects. W.
Johnson Park is located off Broad Street and Fourth Street.

The agreement outlines the guidelines and responsibilities of the TRIP Board (known
as the Sponsor in the agreement) and the Town of Denton (known as the Grantee).
We have already received monies donated to the Town of Denton for the W. Johnson
Park project along with funds that were set aside from our Parks and Recreation
budget, funds from the alcohol sales at the Denton Street Festival also goes into the
account,

Ms. Jenkins stated that she reached out to Chris Phelps with a question regarding the
Friends of the Denton Parks and Recreation Board. Is this a Board established by the
Board of Commissioners or does the Board of Commissioners want to act as the
Board for the W. Johnson Park Project.




-

9a.

10.

e Police Department — Chief Mike James
o Fire Department — Chief Travis Morris

The TRIP Board is a 501 (c)(3) and would provide audit reports each year and we
would provide audit reports of any funds that come through our office. if we receive
funding, we will process the payment made out to the Town of Denton and in turn
issue a check to the TRIP Board to go directly into our Project account.

-Commissioner Morris asked how much is currently in the Town Account for the W.
Johnson Park Project.

-Ms. Jenkins stated it is somewhere around $10,000 but we can pull that information.

-Ms. Jenkins stated that this is a standard agreement. We need to approve the TRIP
Sponsorship Agreement and determine how we wish to -establish the Board.

-Commissioner Morris stated, lets see who was on the initial Board and go from there.
-Commissioner Hogan made a motion to approve the TRIP Sponsorship Agreement.
-Commissioners Hicks seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)
Consideration and Approval of Alleyway Closure at Parcel #0705400300001.

Ms. Jenkins stated that she has received a written request from Todd Smith &
Associates requesting the closure of the alleyway dividing the property along the East
side of Jones Street and West side of Anderson Street under parcel
#0705400300001. This request is coming on behalf of his clients Tom Morris and
sister Mary Morris.

This property is currently under contract to be sold. They cannot locate the official
closure of the alleyway by the Town of Denton as indicated on the Davidson County
GIS. Ms. Jenkins stated in order for us to call for a Public Hearing at the November 3%
Board of Commissioner meeting we will need to run the legal ad in The Dispatch for
four consecutive weeks. The timing of our meeting and the dates of publication for the
Denton Orator do not allow for the Public Hearing to be advertised in time for the
November meeting.

-Commissioner Bean made a motion to approve the Call for Public Hearing at the
November 3™, 2025 meeting.

-Commissioner Morris seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)
Town Department Head Reports

e Water Treatment Plant — Jason Faunce

e Public Works — Michael High e Administration — Paula Hedrick

11.

12.

(Documentation attached for reference)

-Commissioner Bean and Commissioner Morris asked for the 6-month water usage
report showing the usage of the new meters.

Town Attorney Update

Ms. Whitman stated that she will defer her report until after the Closed Session.

Town Manager's Report

Ms. Jenkins reviewed her manager updates from September. (Documentation attached
for reference)

o Wastewater Treatment Plant — Troy Branch



13.

14.

W

Ms. Jenkins stated she is still waiting for the breakout from Fortiline to determine the
actual products that are being returned for credit. Ms. Jenkins stated once that
information is available, it will provide an accurate report of what was received and
installed, what was ordered and not used and what still needs fo be ordered to
complete the project,

Ms. Jenkins stating she and Michael High met with Bobby Kivet from Summey
Engineering to review the water line extension on N. Jones Street.

Ms. Jenkins stated that the pre-meeting with LaBella for the Bar Screen Conveyor has
been set for Wednesday, October 8, 2025.

Ms. Jenkins updated that the railroad crossing on First Street is scheduled for March
2026.

Ms. Jenkins stated there is a non-infrastructure grant through EDC for $50,000. She is
researching to see what this can be used for.

Commntissioner Comments / Concerns

No additional comments or concerns stated at this time.

Closed Session - In Accordance with the N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
Attorney/Client Privilege

Mayor Ward asked for a motion and second fo go into Closed Session.
-Commissioner Bean made a motion to go into Closed Session. 7:18pm
-Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)

Mayor Ward asked for a motion and second to come out of Closed Session.
-Commissioner Morris made motion to come out of Closed Session. 7:44pm
-Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)

The following section is recorded verbatim due to the legal nature of the
discussion.

Review of consent judgment file #251646 CDS received from Tom Terrell, Attorney for
South Davidson Solar Farm.

Ms. Whitman stated that in closed session, the Board discussed that South Davidson
Solar LLC has filed suit against the Town of Denton related to the denial of special use
permit for the solar farm.

If you all recall, this is the solar farm project that is largely located in Davidson County
and was already approved by the Davidson County Commissioners. The Town of
Denton had nothing to do with that, approximately close to 500 acres was approved by
the Davidson County Commissioners. Ms. Whitman stated approximately 85 acres is
what was brought to us for approval. The Special Use permit was approved by the
Planning and Zoning Board and the Board of Commissioners denied it based on the
evidence that you heard at the hearing.

South Davidson Solar Farm LLC has filed a suit against the denial because there is
some conflict with a couple of things. Number one, with the way the ordinance is



written. Whenever North Carolina adopted 160D, we hired a company to rewrite our
ordinances to conform with 160D. When the ordinance was rewritien, there was an
error in the ordinance that actually had the Planning and Zoning Board [acting as the
Board of Adjustment] hold an evidentiary hearing on a Special Use permit and then
called for a second hearing by the Board of Commissioners, which is not aliowed.

Ms. Whitman stated that we are currently correcting our ordinances so that this doesn't
happen again. That is a large portion of the appeal. The second portion of the appeal
has to do with the fact that the evidence that was presented by the town'’s people,
adjacent landowners, was not expert testimony to contradict the expert testimony
provided by South Davidson Solar Farm.

Ms. Whitman stated there is a lawsuit filed, and if the town moves forward in trying to
defend the lawsuit and we are unsuccessiul, the town stands to lose a substaniial
amount of money. The town may be required to pay all of the costs related to lawsuits
not only our side but the solar farm side as well. This could be an excessive amount of
money. | believe there is a strong possibility that we would be unsuccessful and would
be subject to paying all fees.

The South Davidson Solar Group has offered a consent judgment that would give us
some additional concessions based on the information that we heard from our citizens
about their concerns and things that they wanted. In trying to make sure that our
citizens are protected and that their interests are preserved, the consent judgment
gives us some additional protection. Additional buffer in feet [from 100 feet to 150 feet],
additional vegetative buffers additional fencing around the swimming pool and some
other areas to iry to make it the least visible as possible to our citizens.

Ms. Whitman stated it is my recommendation as legal counsel that this consent
judgment be executed and approved. | believe it's in the best interest of not only the
Board of Commissioners but also the Town. Ms. Whitman stated that this is her
recommendation to the Board of Commissioners.

Commissioner Morris asked if we approve the consent judgment or consent
agreement, do the homeowners have a way of relief? If they have a problem, can they
sue the solar farm?

Ms. Whitman stated that she is not going to say they can or they cannot. That is up to
them to talk to an individual attorney about.

Commissioner Morris stated he wasn't sure, if they had a remedy to go through if they
did not like this.

Ms. Whitman stated, if South Davidson Solar Farm is not following what they're
required to do, then the property owner does have recourse, but it's imperative for our
citizens to understand that if something like this were to happen again, and please note




that we have a moratorium on solar farms moving forward. The county also put a
moratorium going forward after this project was approved. If there's anything like this
that the citizens are adamantly opposed to or do not want, it's imperative that they
band together and unify to retain the appropriate experts to give the testimony
necessary o combat this.

It's one of those things that, it's kind of like | had somebody the other day say that
they're irritated that development's going in on a lot next door to them. “I've lived here
for 40 years. | don't want a house built there. | let my dogs run there, | hunt there.” |
asked them if they ever offer to buy it? “They responded, no, | didn't’. it's a similar type
situation and it's tough. I think it's in the citizens best interest that we move forward with
this.

Commissioner Morris asked if there are benchmarks the solar company has to reach.
The first year they have to do something, the second year they have to do something.
They can't just sit out there forever.

Ms. Whitman stated that is correct, if they don't do anything, Angel, how long is it
before the permit expires?

Ms. Jenkins stated two years.
Ms. Whitman stated, if they do nothing for two years, it expires.

Commissioner Bean stated, and they would have to start completely over. Is that
correct?

Ms. Whitman stated that is correct and The Town of Denton currently has a moratorium
that would not allow that.

Commissioner Morris asked who determines that they've started?

Ms. Jenkins stated, that she has had conversations with South Davidson Farm. They
just started clearing land and you can see they are moving forward with the southern
part of that project. It's not just visibly that shows moving forward with a project, it is
paperwork, it is filing for their permits and things like that. We can definitely moving
forward ask them to provide updates on what is going on, but as long as they can show
progress that they are moving forward with their permits, then they are moving forward
with the project itself.

Commissioner Morris asked if our portion becomes part of the same project?

Ms. Whitman stated the judgement says, "For purposes of determining the date of

permit expiration, the one-year period of validity per NC General Statute 160D-108D
shall be calculated from the date of the filing of this judgment”. So the date signed by
an actual judge and filed in determining whether work has substantially commenced.



[

The Town shall recognize North Carolina case law that considers time worked, labor,
materials, and soft costs such as engineering, environmental studies, surveying, legal
cosfs, etc.

Commissioner Morris stated, it is in black and white, what they have to do?

Ms. Whitman stated yes.

Commissioner Hogan asked the if the date starts like right now.

Ms. Whitman stated once the judge signs.

Commissioner Hogan stated, once it goes to the judge, then two years after that.

Ms. Whitman stated if you agree to it, then we have to submit it to the judge for the
judge's signature to approve it.

Ms. Whitman stated if you have questions, we do have a representative from Tom
Terrell's office. Ms. Whitman asked the representative fo introduce himself.

I'm Joseph Schuer with Fox Rothschild LLP.

Ms. Whitman stated he is here to answer any questions on behalf of the solar farm
tonight should you have any additional ones.

Ms. Whitman stated, | will say for the record each of you have expressed to me that
you don't want to see this happen and | want all the citizens to know that, but just
because we don't necessarily want to see something happen doesn't mean that it's not
in the best interest of the town o enter into the consent judgment. You have to put your
personal feelings aside and do what's best for the town.

Commissioner Morris stated the property owner can do what he wants to with his
property, it is property rights foo.

Commissioner Bean stated, this is one of those days you don't enjoy being a
Commissioner, because sometimes it's hard. We did fight as best we could. We went
from a 100’ (feet) buffer to 150’ (feet) buffer. We, as you said, we did get vegetation
increased all around. South Davidson Solar Farm did even agree to some opaque
fencing in certain more populated areas to make it as least obtrusive as possible.

*
ra

Commissioner Bean stated it is not what | want to do, but in light of the fact that the suit
has been filed and the Town of Denton stands to lose substantial money in lawyer fees
and having to pay their fees and everything, | reluctantly make a motion to approve the
consent judgment of file 251646 CDS because | do believe it's in the best interest and
fong run of the town. That's my motion.




Mayor Ward asked for a second.
Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion.
Mayor Ward asked if there was any further discussion on this?

Commissioner Morris stated, Mayor [ think the board has looked at this in every angle
possible and with the attorney's advice and with case law that we have researched with
the potential economic impact on the town's budget if we were to lose and it looks like
they have not lost a case in North Carolina on solar farm.

Ms. Whitman stated, she would add to clarify that the town's people and the attorney
who owns the property and spoke at the hearing had brought one case to light. That
case has since been withdrawn and overturned. At this point they have not lost any.

Commissioner Morris stated, | think | agree with Commissioner Bean, it's a tough
decision but it is in the best interest of the town as a whole.

Mayor Ward stated, all in favor say .

Yay — Commissioner Bean, Commissioner Morris, Commissioner Hogan,
Commissioner Hicks. Motion passed unanimously (4/0)

End of verbatim record.

The Board of Commissioners went back into closed session at 8:00pm.
The Board of Commissioners came back into open session at 8:44pm.
15. Announcements — i -
e October 7%- Cycle NC — Harrison Park- 9am-1pm
e October 11" — Denton Street Festival 9:00am -6:00pm
o October 14"- PTRC Weatherization Assistance- Town Hall- 10am-2pm
« October 25" — Monster Mash & 4" Annual Chili Cookoff — Harrison Park — 4pm-7pm

16.Board of Commissioners Adjournment
The Board of Commissioners adjourned at 8:45pm

(\f % 7; jé . LarryW@, Mayor

Paula Hedrick, Town Clerk




